
MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 

AGENDA May 7. 2024 

1.0 Call Public Session to Order 
1.1 Roll Call to Establish Quorum 

2.0 Public Comment On Closed Session Topics 

School Campus - New Classroom West 5:30 P.M. 

General public comment on any closed session item will be heard. Pursuant to Board Policy, the Board may limit 

individual comments to no more than 3 minutes and individual topics to 15 minutes. It is recommended you begin 
your comments by stating your name. 

3.0 Adjourn to Closed Session 
3.1 Conference With Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 

1. Agency Negotiator: Roberto Vaca, Superintendent
2. Employee Organizations

a. MSAT
b. Classified Members

4.0 Convene Regular Session (Estimated start time 6:15 PM) 
4.1 Flag Salute 
4.2 Report Action Taken in Closed Session (If any) 
4.3 Introduce Guests 

5.0 Opportunity for Members of the Public to Address the Board 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda. Under state law, matters presented under this item cannot 
be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Board consideration. Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes so all interested parties have an 
opportunity to speak with a total of fifteen (15) minutes allotted for the Public Comment Period. Please state your name and address for the record. 

6.0 Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2024 (A) 
March 21, 2024 (A) 

7.0 Correspondence 
7.1 Review of Second Period Interim Report 

8.0 Superintendent's/Principal's Report 
8.1.1 Campus Update - ASB Student Board Representative 
8.1.2 Construction Update 

9.0 Consent Items / Review/ Public Hearing/ Public Input / Board Discussion / ACTION (as applicable) 
9.1 Interdistricts (A) 

9.2 Resolution 05-24-01 (A) 
9.3 ERS Library Media Service Contract for 2024-2025 (A) 
9.4 Renaissance Learning Renewal of Services (A) 
9.5 Declaration of Surplus and Obsolete Equipment (A) 

10.0 Authorization of Vendor Payments dated 3/28/2024 through 4/12/2024 (A) 

-1-







9.0 CONSENT ITEMS: 

9.1 Construction Inspector 
Contract 

9.2 Teac:her Induction Program 
(TIP) 

9.3 Budget Revision 003-24 

9.4 Cash Flow Report: 
February 2024 

9.5 2023-2024 Second Interim 
Budget Report 

9.6 2024-2025 Transportation 
Plan 

9.7 Interdistricts 

10.0 AUTHORIZATION OF 

VENDOR PAYMENTS: 

11.0 PERSONNEL: 

11.1 Certificated Re-Elections 

11.2 Personnel Order 

12.0 CLOSING ACTIVITIES: 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT: 

Lynn Simmons 

Delbert Quintana 

Robert Cepeda 

Teacher Conference Week, Scholastic Book Fair, Concert Choir at 
Ronald Reagan Library, and Pastries with Parents. 

8.1.2: Construction Update - Superintendent Vaca provided an update 
on the status of the completion of the construction project with the new 
classroom modulars and the Student Education & Activity Center. 

Trustee Simmons moved and Trustee Cepeda seconded the motion 
to approve the contract with Am Tech Construction Inspector for the new 
Modular Building Project. PASSED 

Trustee Worthley moved and Trustee Cepeda seconded the motion to 
approve the agreement for Teacher Induction Programs. PASSED 

Trustee Simmons moved and Trustee Cepeda seconded the motion to 
approve Budget Revision 003-24 as presented. PASSED 

Trustee Worthley moved and Trustee Simmons seconded the motion to 
approve the February Cash Flow Report as presented. PASSED 

Trustee Worthley moved and Trustee Simmons seconded the motion to 
approve the 2023-24 Second Interim Budget Report. PASSED 

Trustee Simmons moved and Trustee Cepeda seconded the motion to 
approve the 2024-2025 Transportation Plan as presented. PASSED 

Trustee Cepeda moved and Trustee Simmons seconded the motion to 
approve the interdistrict 9.7.1 as presented. PASSED 

Trustee Worthley moved and Trustee Belknap seconded the motion to 
approve vendor payments for the period of 2/2/2024-2/23/2024. 

PASSED 

Trustee Simmons moved and Trustee Worthley seconded the motion to 
approve the Certificated Re-election list for the 2024-2025 school year. 

PASSED 
Trustee Cepeda moved and Trustee Worthley seconded the motion to 
approve Personnel Order 11.2.1: resignation of Olga Zavala and 11.2.2: 
The hiring of Joel Martinez as technology assistant. PASSED 
None. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:36 P.M. 
Respectfully Submitted, 

President Roberto Vaca 

Clerk Jeff Belknap 

Trustee _4_ Vicki Worthley

Secretary 

Trustee 

Trustee 

















2023-24 Second Period Interim Review 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary School District 

Unrestricted General Fund Changes 

1,500,000 

1.000,000 

500,000 

(500,000) 

(l.000,COO) 

(1.500,000) 

(2,000,000) 

(557,975) (39'l.529) 
...... - --- ·- .... .. . . 

April 16, 2024 
Addendum 

The next graph presents the district's 2023-24 Second Interim reserve status compared with the original adopted 

budget and state minimum reserve requirement. 

5,000,000 

4,500,000 

4,000,000 

3,500,000 

3,000,000 

2.500,000 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

l.000,000 

500,000 

Minimum Reserve Standard 

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

,a Minimum Reserve Requirement GI Available Reserves-Adopled Budget OAvallable Resen,es-lnterlm 

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

This section of our letter lists comments and recommendations we consider appropriate as a result of our review and 

current state budget projections. 

* The district is projecting current and future reserves that reflect a sound fiscal position. We commend the
district for maintaining a secure financial position.

a+ There are no additional comments or recommendations. 

-12-

41Page 



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

May 7, 2024 

8.0 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

8.1.1 CAMPUS EVENTS AT MSJUESD 

8.1.2 CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 

The ASB Board Rep will provide information to the Board on past events and calendar 

dates/events that will be coming up on our campus. Additionally, Superintendent Vaca will 

provide an update on the status of the construction project. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

NONE 

NONE 

-13-



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

May 7, 2024 

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEM: 9.1 INTERDISTRICT REQUESTS 

INTERDISTRICT REQUESTS ATTACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

For 2024-2025 School Year 

9.1.1 

9.1.2 

9.1.3 

9.1.4 

9.1.5 

9.1.6 

9.1.7 

9.1.8 

9.1.9 

9.1.10 

9.1.11 

9.1.12 

9.1.13 

9.1.14 

9.1.15 

9.1.16 

9.1.17 

9.1.18 

Aranzazu (1st & 8th Grades) New & Renewal from Dinuba 

Carrillo Rubio (2nd & 5th Grades) Renewal from Dinuba 

Gonzalez (5th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Hernandez (6th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Jimenez (2nd, 4th, & 6th Grades) Renewal from Dinuba 

Meza (2nd Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Montejano (8th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Montejano (2nd & 4th Grades) Renewal from Dinuba 

Olea (8th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Peralta (1st Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 
Rabago ( 4th Grade) Renewal from Visalia 

Reynoso Renteria (7th Grade) Renewal from Cutler-Orosi 

Rojas (Kindergarten [New] & 3rd Grades [Renewal]) from Dinuba 

Salas (Kindergarten) New from Dinuba 

Saldana-Diaz (5th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Torres (Kindergarten, 3rd, & 6th Grades) Renewal from Parlier 

Uribe (6th Grade) Renewal from Dinuba 

Valdez (TK [New], 2nd, & 6th Grades [Renewal]) from Dinuba 

For 2023-2024 School Year 

9.1.19 

9.1.20 

9.1.21 

9.1.22 

Garcia Garay (8th Grade) New to Dinuba 

Frausto (1st & 8th Grades) New from Cutler-Orosi 

Peralta (2nd Grade) New from Dinuba 

Reyna Mendoza (5th Grade) New from Dinuba 

RECOMMENDATION: The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approve the interdistrict requests as presented. 

PROPOSED ACTION: APPROVE 

-14-









MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

May 7, 2023 

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEM: 9.2 RESOLUTION 05-24-01 - BOARD MEMBER ELECTIONS 

ATIACHMENTS: RESOLUTION 05-24-01 

DISCUSSION: 

The Board is required to adopt a resolution regarding the upcoming election. This resolution 

orders the election, makes certain specifications for county elections used in arranging for our 

district;s election, consolidates our district's election with the general election, and advises 

TCOE of the newspaper in which the district's Notice of Election is to be published. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approve the 05-24-01 Resolution of Board Members 

Elections. 

APPROVE 

-18-























MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

May 7, 2023 

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEM: 9.4 RENAISSANCE LEARNING 

ATTACHMENTS: RENEWAL FOR RENAISSANCE LEARNING 

DISCUSSION: 

Renaissance Learning provides access for Accelerated Reader, STAR Reading, and STAR math 

tests for our students. Cost is based on ADA for a total of $8,435.86. There is no cost to the 

general fund. Cost will be covered using LCAP Supplemental/Concentration Funds. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approve the renewal of services with Renaissance Place. 

APPROVE 

-29-



(qenaissance Subscription Renewal 

Quote #: RPRNQ3062027* 

2911 Peach Street, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54494-1905 
Phone:(800) 338-4204 I Fax:(877) 280-7642 
Federal 1.0. 39-1559474 
www.renalssance.com 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

PO Box 25 
Subscription End: 

Notice Date: 

7/31/2024 

04 2024 
Sultana, CA 93666-0025 
Contact: Cameron Aldinger - (559) 591-1634 
Email: cameron@msschool.org 

Quote Summary 

Reference ID: 683526 

Renaissance Products & Services Total $8,437.50 
-----------------------·-------·--·---··--------·-·------·-------

Applied Discounts $(1.64) 
------------------·----·------·-----------·---·-·-------·--------·-----------

Sales Tax $0.00 

:us[) $8,435.86 

Pricing and discounts are subject to change if alterations are made to this quote. 
To receive applicable discounts, all orders included on this quote must be received at the same time. 

Use your Prop 98 funding to lock in multi-year discounts on the solutions you need. 

By signing below, Customer: 
acknowledges that the Person signing this Quote is authorized to do so; 
agrees that this Quote, any other quotes issued to Customer during the Subscription Period and Customer and its 
Authorized Users access to and use of the Products and Services are subject to the Renaissance Terms of Service 
and License located at https://doc.renlearn.com/KMNet/R62416 pdf which are incorporated herein by reference; 
acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Renaissance's Practices Relating to Children's Online Privacy 
https://docs.renaissance.com/R63870 directed to you as the school official responsible for authorizing the use of 
the Renaissance Products and Services in the educational context. 

To accept this offer and place an order, please sign and return this Quote. 

Renaissance will issue an invoice pursuant to this Quote on the Invoice Date you specify below. If no Invoice Date is listed, 
Renaissance will issue an invoice within 30 days from the date of this Quote. If your organization requires a purchase order 
prior to invoicing, please check the box below and issue your purchase order to the Renaissance address below no later 
than 15 days prior to the Invoice Date. Payment is due net 30 days from the Invoice Date. 

If your billing address is different from the address at the top of this Quote, please add that billing address below. 

Please check here if your organization requires a purchase order prior to invoicing: [ ] 

Renaissance Learning, Inc. 

Mu)}/_/. 
Name: Ted Wolf 

Title: VP - Corporate Controller 

Date: 4/5/2024 

Mail: PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 
Fax: (877)280-7642 
Email: electronicorders@renaissance.com 

Phone: (877)444-3172 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Invoice Date: 

-30-
Page 1 of 4 





fqenaissance 

2911 Peach Street, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54494-1905 
Phone:(800) 338-4204 i Fax:(877) 280-7642 
Federal 1.0. 39-155947 4 
www.renaissance.com 

Annual All Product Renaissance Platform 

> 1' >s9b�cripfipt··•··· ···1 

Subscription Renewal 

Quote #: RPRNQ3062027* 

l . Period I 
[aB/01/2024-07/31/20�

----
+-$7_50_.oo -----S7_5_o.o_o_

Platform Services Subtotal 

-32-
Pane 3 nf 4 



rctenaissance Subscription Renewal 

Quote #: RPRNQ3062027* 

2911 Peach Street, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54494-1905 
Phone:(800) 338-42041 Fax:(877) 280-7642 
Federal I.D. 39-1559474 
www.renalssance.com 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School - 705215 

• Andi.i�I J.i!Prqijuct Renai��.ance. ij1�tf�tmt6t�J ·•· ·

Lexile is a registered frademarkofMetaMetrics, Inc 

©Copyright 2
0

24 Renaissance Learning, Inc. Ali rights reserved 
All logos, designs, and brand names for Renaissance's products and services are trademarks of Renaissance Learning, Inc .. and its 
subsidiaries, registered, common law, or pending registration in the United States. 
All other product and company names should be considered the property of their respective companies and organizations 

-33-

410 

410 

410 

Pace 4 of 4 



Renaissance 
See Every Student. 

April 05, 2024 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elem School 

ATTN Cameron Aldinger 

PO Box 25 

Sultana, CA 93666-0025 

Dear Cameron: 

PO Box 8036 

Wisconsin Rapids, WI 

54495-8036 

P: (715) 424-3636 

www.renaissance.com 

On behalf of everyone at Renaissance, we want to thank you for choosing us to be a valued partner in education. 
We 3re writing today to let you kno1�· t�il.t it's a!rn0st t:me to renr.w your subscription: 

Product Expiring 7/31/2024 

Renaissance Accelerated Reader 

Renaissance Star Math 

Renaissance Star Reading 

Now, more than ever, we know how important it is for schools to have the right set of teaching tools that work 
together to provide continuous learning for all students. Renaissance is here to help you and your students 
continue learning and growing-both inside and outside of the classroom. 

You should have received an email recently with your renewal notification and details for renewing. Or, feel free to 
contact me to discuss your subscription options. 

Thank you again for choosing Renaissance to help accelerate learning for all. Our entire team is dedicated to 
assisting you and ensuring the renewal process is convenient and easy to complete. If you need assistance or 
have any questions about your renewal, please reach out to me and I will be happy to assist 

Sincerely, 

Ceene Randle 

Cust Succ Mgr Digital Sr 

(714)442-1481

ceene.randle@renaissance.com 

P.S. Interested in learning more about the just-right tools for remote learning? When students can use the same digital solutions 
from home that they use inside the classroom, you can ensure continuous learning for all. Visit https://www.renaissance.com/ 

to see more about how Renaissance's suite of products can help. 

-34-



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT ELEMENTARY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

May 7, 2024 

CONSENT 

9.5 DECLARATION OF SURPLUS AND OBSOLETE 

EQUIPMENT 

SURPLUS LIST 

The Certificated Librarian has identified books that have become obsolete. The Board of 

Education has the authority under Sections 17545 and 17546 of the Education Code to sell, 

auction, donate, and dispose of district furniture and equipment that are deemed unusable, 

obsolete, or surplus. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board declare 

and approve the sale, donation, and disposal of this 

equipment. 

APPROVE 

-35-













Maggie and the Pirate Keats, Ezra Jack. 1979 1 

Magnets Cooper, Jason, 1942- 1992 12 

Make it balance Evans, David, 1937- 1992 0 

Make it change Evans, David, 1937- 1992 0 

Make it go Evans, David, 1937- 1992 0 

Many moons Thurber, James, 1894-1961. 1990 3 

Marie: an invitation to dance, France, 1775 Kudlinski, Kathleen V. 1996 0 

Marie: an invitation to dance, France, 1775 Kudlinski, Kathleen V. 1996 3 

Marie Curie and the discovery of radium Steinke, Anne. 1987 3 

Matter really matters Patten, J.M., 1944- 1995 4 

McBroom's ghost Fleischman, Sid, 1920-2010. 1998 3 

McElligot's pool Seuss, Dr. 1947 11 

A medieval feast Aliki. 1986 1 

Meet Danitra Brown Grimes, Nikki. 1997 1 

Meet Danitra Brown Grimes, Nikki. 1997 0 

Meet Kirsten an American girl Shaw, Janet Beeler, 1937- 1986 4 

Millions of cats Gag, Wanda. 1996 12 

Milo's toothache Luttrell, Ida. 1992 10 

Monkey see, monkey do Gave, Marc. 1993 75 

Moonbear's dream Asch, Frank. 1999 18 

Mothers Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 6 

Motion and speed Marshall, John, 1944- 1995 3 

Mountain wedding Gibbons, Faye. 1996 0 

Mountains Murray, Peter, 1952 Sept. 29- 1997 2 

Mouse's terrible Christmas,the Kelley, True. 1978 1 

The Mouses' Terrible Halloween Kelley, True and Lindblom, StevE 3 

The Mouses' Terrible Halloween Kelley, True and Lindblom, StevE 0 

Move Over, Rover! Beaumont, Karen ; illustrated by 2006 71 

Mrs. Claus Crazy Christmas Kroll, Steven. 14 

My father's dragon Gannett, Ruth Stiles. 1987 4 

My house has stars McDonald, Megan. 1996 0 

My house has stars McDonald, Megan. 1996 1 

My house has stars McDonald, Megan. 1996 0 

My little island Lessac, Frane. 1987 12 

My working Mom Glassman, Peter. 1994 30 

Natural wonders of North America O'Neill, Catherine, 1950- 1984 2 

The news about dinosaurs Lauber, Patricia. 1994 0 

Nicholas Pipe San Souci, Robert D. 2000 0 

Nickommoh ! : a Thanksgiving celebration Koller, Jackie French. 1999 2 

Night becomes Day McGuire, Richard. 1 

Nim and the war effort Lee, Milly. 2002 2 

Northern refuge a story of a Canadian boreal fores1 Fraggalosch, Audrey, 1954- 1999 4 

Nova's ark Kirk, David, 1955- 1998 18 

Ocean MacQuitty, Miranda. 1995 0 

Ocean world Baines, Francesca. 1997 0 

The Old man and the bear H,,nel, Wolfram. 1995 8 

Olivia and the Easter egg hunt Evans, Cordelia. 2013 12 

-41-



Olivia and the Easter egg hunt Evans, Cordelia. 2013 29 

Olivia and the school carnival Gallo, Tina. 2010 8 

Olivia and the school carnival Gallo, Tina. 2010 7 

Once upon a springtime Marzollo, Jean. 1997 12 

One Fine Day Hogrogian, Nanny. 2 

One Fine Day Hogrogian, Nanny. 5 

One monkey too many Koller, Jackie French. 1999 38 

One monkey too many Koller, Jackie French. 1999 23 

One very best Valentine's day Blas, Joan W. 1990 5 

Otis Long, Loren, 2013 4 

Otis Long, Loren. 2009 13 

Otis Long, Loren. 2009 18 

Otis and the puppy Long, Loren. 2013 15 

Our patchwork planet: the story of plate tectonics Sattler, Helen Roney. 1995 0 

The owl and the pussy cat Lear, Edward, 1812-1888. 1987 15 

Ox-Cart Man Donald Hall. 0 

Ox-cart man Hall, Donald, 1928- 1983 2 

Parents Saunders-Smith, Gail. 1997 8 

Parents' night fright Levy, Elizabeth. 1998 10 

The patchwork quilt Flournoy, Valerie, 1952- 1984 2 

Pecos Bill : un cuento fantastico, relatado e ilustrac Kellogg, Steven. 1995 1 

A Picture for Harold's room Johnson, Crockett. 8 

Piggy and Dad Go Fishing Martin, David. 2005 1 

Piggy and Dad Go Fishing Martin, David. 2005 3 

Piggy and Dad Go Fishing Martin, David. 2005 4 

Pippi's extraordinary ordinary day Lindgren, Astrid, 1907- 1999 8 

Pippi's extraordinary ordinary day Lindgren, Astrid, 1907- 1999 9 

Pirates Don't change Diapers Long, Melinda. 2007 16 

Pizza for Breakfast Kovalski, Maryann. 2 

Plum full of prunes Hauck, Phillip, 1920- 1999 0 

Poinsettia and her Family Bond, Felicia. 1981 17 

The pool of fire Christopher, John. 1988 2 

Porcupine's Pajama Party Harshman, Terry Webb. 5 

Pretty good magic Dubowski, Cathy East. 1987 41 

Prince of Egypt, The Dream Works. 1998 4 

The Purple pussycat Hillert, Margaret. 1981 33 

Puss in Boots Galdone, Paul. 1976 0 

Puss in boots : the story of a sneaky cat Ross, Tony. 1981 0 

Quick chick Hoban, Julia. 1989 11 

Rain and us Powell, Jillian. 1999 2 

Raptors! the nastiest dinosaurs Lessem, Don. 1996 2 

Ready for Anything! Kasza, Keiko. 2009 46 

Rivers & lakes Morris, Neil, 1946- 1998 1 

Rosie's Walk Hutchins, Pat. 0 

Rotten Ralph Gantos, Jack. 1976 16 

Run to the Rainbow Hillert, Margaret. 101 

The salamander room Mazer, Anne. 1994 16 

-42-



Sam Johnson and the blue ribbon quilt Ernst, Lisa Campbell. 1983 7 

Sam Johnson and the blue ribbon quilt Ernst, Lisa Campbell. 1983 2 

Sam Johnson and the blue ribbon quilt Ernst, Lisa Campbell. 1983 3 

Samantha's surprise a Christmas story Schur, Maxine. 1986 0 

Sam's Wild West Show Antle, Nancy. 1995 7 

The science book of energy Ardley, Neil. 1992 0 

The science book of motion Ardley, Neil. 1992 0 

The seven silly eaters Haberman, Mary Ann. 1997 2 

The seven voyages of Sin bad the sailor Yeoman, John. 1997 0 

Shannon a Chinatown adventure, San Francisco, 18 Kudlinski, Kathleen V. 1996 1 

Shannon a Chinatown adventure, San Francisco, 18 Kudlinski, Kathleen V. 1996 0 

Shibumi and the kitemaker Mayer, Mercer, 1943- 1999 0 

Silly times with two silly trolls Jewell, Nancy. 1996 9 

Simpson Snail sings Himmelman, John,. 1992 4 

Sink or swim Marshall, John, 1944- 1995 2 

Sisters Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 9 

Snow and us Powell, Jillian. 1999 8 

Snow day Bliss, Corinne Demas. 1998 47 

So many circles, so many squares Hoban, Tana. 1998 31 

Soccer cousins Marzollo, Jean. 1997 4 

Solids, liquids, and gases Patten, J. M., 1944- 1995 0 

Some smug slug Edwards, Pamela Duncan. 1996 61 

Song of Sedna San Souci, Robert D. 1981 1 

Sound and music Dixon, Malcolm. 1998 0 

Spiny Lassig, Jurgen. 1995 19 

The stubborn pumpkin Geringer, Laura. 1999 6 

Sunflower Ford, Miela. 1995 18 

Sunflower house Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1996 8 

Sweet Clara and the Freedom Quilt Deborah Hopkinson. 1993 0 

Tacky the Penguin Lester, Helen ; illustrated by Lyn 1988 23 

Take a walk, Johnny Hillert, Margaret. 1981 1 

Take a walk, Johnny Hillert, Margaret. 1981 3 

Tanglebird Lodge, Bernard. 1997 5 

Teddy bear tears Aylesworth, Jim. 1997 57 

Tell me a story, Mama Johnson, Angela. 1992 2 

Ten dogs in the window a countdown book Masure!, Claire. 1997 1 

Ten Oni Drummers Gollub, Matthew. 2000 0 

Ten Oni Drummers Gollub, Matthew. 2000 0 

Thank you Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 2001 29 

Thanksgiving Cats Marzollo, Jean ,; illustrated by H 1999 7 

Thanksgiving Day MacMillan, Dianne M., 1943- 1997 1 

Thanksgiving Day MacMillan, Dianne M., 1943- 1997 3 

This is the way we eat our lunch : a book about chil Baer, Edith. 1995 2 

Three by the sea Marshall, Edward. 1994 9 

Three by the sea Marshall, Edward. 1994 6 

Three by the sea Marshall, Edward. 1994 4 

The three goats Hillert, Margaret. 2006 43 

-43-



A three hat day Geringer, Laura. 1987 7 

Three young pilgrims Harness, Cheryl. 1995 2 

Tight times Hazen, Barbara Shook. 1983 0 

Tight times Hazen, Barbara Shook. 1983 3 

Too many dogs! Haskins, Lori. 1998 5 

Toot & Puddle Hobbie, Holly. 1997 2 

Top cat Ehlert, Lois. 2001 36 

Tornadoes Erlbach, Arlene. 1994 8 

Train to Somewhere Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1996 0 

Train to Somewhere Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1996 3 

Treasure Nap Havill, Juanita. 1992 6 

Trojan horse the world's greatest adventure Clement-Davies, David, 1961- 1999 1 

Twinnies Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1997 6 

The Umbrella Brett, Jan. 2005 4 

Uncles Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 9 

The ups and downs of Simpson Snail Himmelman, John,. 1997 3 

Very Sleepy Pig, the Malam, John. 5 

Volcano Lampton, Christopher. 1991 4 

Volcano Lampton, Christopher. 1991 0 

Volcano Lampton, Christopher. 1991 2 

Volcano the eruption and healing of Mount St. HelE Lauber, Patricia. 1993 17 

Volcanoes and other natural disasters Griffey, Harriet. 1998 4 

Wagon wheels Brenner, Barbara. 1993 1 

Watching desert wildlife Arnold, Caroline. 1994 0 

Water Cooper, Jason, 1942- 1992 14 

We just moved! Krensky, Stephen. 1998 18 

Weather Farndon, John. 1992 2 

Weather Farndon, John. 1992 0 

Weather and climate Taylor, Barbara, 1954- 1993 2 

Webster's Dictionary and Thesaurus Webster. 0 

Webster's Dictionary and Thesaurus Webster. 1 

What a wonderful day to be a cow Lesser, Carolyn. 1995 0 

When I was little Igus, Toyomi. 1992 0 

The white stag Seredy, Kate. 1979 0 

The white stag Seredy, Kate. 1979 1 

Whose mouse are you? Kraus, Robert. 17 

Whose mouse are you? Kraus, Robert, 1925- 1998 26 

Why the Ocean is Salty Leonhardt, Alice. 2000 10 

Why we have Thanksgiving Hillert, Margaret. 1982 7 

Wiley learns to spell Lewin, Betsy,. 1998 1 

Will's mammoth Martin, Rafe, 1946- 1997 1 

Wind CoopeGJason,1942- 1992 10 

Wind and us Powell, Jillian. 1999 4 

Wood-hoopoe Willie Kroll, Virginia L. 1992 3 

You are My Miracle Love, Maryann Cusimano; illust 2005 39 

Atlas des peuples. Atlas of people Millet, Claude,. 1996 0 

Atlas des peuples. Atlas of people Millet, Claude,. 1996 0 

-44-



Beastly tales Yeti, Bigfoot, and the Loch Ness Mons Yorke, Malcolm. 1998 7 

Big city port Maestro, Betsy. 1983 2 

Costumes Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 32 

Feelings Aliki. 1986 10 

Feelings Aliki. 1986 10 

Friends & Favorites, look and Find Disney Enterprises, Inc. 2009 22 

The furry news how to make a newspaper Leedy, Loreen. 1990 3 

Helen Keller courage in the dark Hurwitz, Johanna. 1997 2 

I feel angry Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 1999 27 

I feel brave Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 1999 22 

I feel sad Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 1999 30 

I feel safe Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 1999 35 

Invaders from outer space : real-life stories of UFO: Brooks, Philip. 1999 6 

Invaders from outer space : real-life stories of UFO: Brooks, Philip. 1999 14 

Is a blue whale the biggest thing there is? Wells, Robert E. 1993 0 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Harris, Jacqueline L. 1983 2 

Masks Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 11 

Masks Schaefer, Lola M., 1950- 1999 7 

Moss gown Hooks, William H. 1987 2 

My first look at sizes. 1990 22 

The New York Public Library kid's guide to research Heiligman, Deborah. 1998 0 

Our presidency Spies, Karen Bornemann. 1994 0 

Ripley's believe it or not! : curioddities. 2011 0 

Ripley's believe it or not! : curioddities. 2011 2 

Ripley's believe it or not! : curioddities. 2011 0 

A rocket in my pocket the rhymes and chants of yo Withers, Carl, 1988 1 

Tsunami! : death wave Sorenson, Margo, 1997 0 

Walking the road to freedom : a story about Sojour Ferris, Jeri. 1988 0 

When you go to kindergarten Howe, James, 1946- 1995 0 

Wildlife alert! : The struggle to survive Stuart, Gene S. 1980 3 

Albino animals Halls, Kelly Milner, 1957- 2004 0 

Albino animals Halls, Kelly Milner, 1957- 2004 0 

All the Seasons of the Year Rose, Deborah Lee;, illustrated t 2010 3 

The Always prayer shawl Oberman, Sheldon. 1997 0 

Amanda Pig and her big brother Oliver Van Leeuwen, Jean. 1982 7 

Amanda pig on her own Van Leeuwen, Jean. 16 

Amanda Pig, school girl Van Leeuwen, Jean. 1997 23 

Amelia Bedelia, rocket scientist? Parish, Herman. 2006 3 

The American Wei Pomeranc, Marion Hess. 1998 0 

And still the turtle watched MacGill-Callahan, Sheila. 1991 14 

Andrew's loose tooth Munsch, Robert N., 1945- 1998 11 

Annie and the Old One Miles, Miska. 1971 0 

Ant plays Bear Byars, Betsy Cromer. 1997 26 

Ant plays Bear Byars, Betsy Cromer. 1997 6 

An apple festival : orchards in autumn Gabbert, Lisa. 1999 2 

An apple festival : orchards in autumn Gabbert, Lisa. 1999 5 

Are you there God? It's me, Margaret Blume, Judy. 1986 0 

-45-



Armadillos sleep in dugouts and other places anim, Ryan, Pam Mul:>oz. 1997 0 

Artemis Fowl : the lost colony Colfer, Eoin. 2008 2 

Arthur's birthday party Hoban, Lillian. 1999 11 

Arthur's camp-out Hoban, Lillian. 1993 8 

Arthur's camp-out Hoban, Lillian. 1993 15 

Arthur's Christmas cookies Hoban, Lillian. 1984 22 

Arthur's Christmas cookies Hoban, Lillian. 1984 17 

Arthur's funny money Hoban, Lillian. 1981 20 

Arthur's great big valentine Hoban, Lillian. 1989 7 

Arthur's great big valentine Hoban, Lillian. 1989 13 

Arthur's honey bear Hoban, Lillian. 1982 13 

Arthur's honey bear Hoban, Lillian. 1982 5 

Arthur's loose tooth Hoban, Lillian. 1985 9 

Arthur's loose tooth Hoban, Lillian. 1985 11 

Arthur's pen pal Hoban, Lillian. 1976 11 

Arthur's prize reader Hoban, Lillian. 6 

Arthur's prize reader Hoban, Lillian. 21 

Atlas of islands Grant, Donald. 1999 8 

Author's day Pinkwater, Daniel Manus. 5 

The autobiography of Miss Jane Pittman Gaines, Ernest J., 1933- 1996 1 

B-e-s-t friends Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1988 9 

The Baby bunny Hillert, Margaret. 2009 57 

The Bear That Heard Crying Warnock, Natalie Kinsey and Kin 1993 8 

Beast and the Halloween horror Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1990 6 

Benjamin Bear in Fuzzy thinking Coudray, Philippe, 2011 8 

Bernard Waber, Bernard. 1982 1 

The best book of fossils, rocks, and minerals Pellant, Chris. 2000 0 

The best book of fossils, rocks, and minerals Pellant, Chris. 2000 0 

Betsy and Billy Haywood, Carolyn, 1898- 2004 9 

Betsy and the boys Haywood, Carolyn, 1898- 1973 4 

Bible lands Tubb, Jonathan N. 1991 0 

A bicycle for Rosaura Barbot, Daniel. 1994 12 

Big Bob and the magic Valentine's Day potato Pinkwater, Daniel Manus, 1941- 1999 7 

Big Bob and the Thanksgiving potatoes Pinkwater, Daniel Manus, 1941- 1998 4 

The big box Morrison, Toni. 1999 3 

Bird & Squirrel all tangled up Burks, James (James R.), 2019 22 

The Birthday car Hillert, Margaret. 2007 75 

The Birthday car Hillert, Margaret. 2007 45 

Black cat Myers, Christopher A.,. 1999 8 

Blue willow Gates, Doris, 1901- 1940 1 

Book!Book!Book Bruss, Deborah. 2001 4 

A Bosnian family Silverman, Robin Landew. 1997 0 

Bravo, Amelia Bedelia ! Parish, Herman. 1997 10 

Bunny Cakes Wells, Rosemary,. 1997 14 

The Bunyans Wood, Audrey. 1996 3 

The button box Reid, Margarette S. 1995 24 

The cake that Mack ate Robart, Rose, 1940- 1994 24 

-46-



A Camping Spree with Mr. Magee Van Dusen, Chris. 2006 12 

The Candy corn contest Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1984 6 

Case of the cool-itch kid, The Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1989 6 

The case of the double bumblebee sting Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 5 

the case of the Halloween ghost Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 22 

The case of the hooking bull Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 6 

The case of the measled cowboy Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 3 

The case of the night-stalkng bone monster Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 6 

The case of the Saddle House robbery Erickson, John R., 1943- 2000 6 

The case of the vampire cat Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 10 

The case of the vampire vacuum sweeper Erickson, John R., 1943- 2000 3 

The case of the vanishing fishhook Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 3 

Cesar Chavez; A photo-illustrated biograghy Davis, Lucile. 1998 1 

A chair for my mother Williams, Vera B. 1988 2 

Champ Jones, Marcia Thornton. 2007 10 

Charlie the Ranch Dog Drummond, Ree. 8 

Christmas time Gibbons, Gail. 1982 0 

Cinderella at the ball Hillert, Margaret. 1970 41 

Cinderella at the ball Hillert, Margaret. 1970 27 

Circus fun Hillert, Margaret. 2006 28 

Circus fun Hillert, Margaret. 2006 26 

Circus fun Hillert, Margaret. 2006 20 

City fun Hillert, Margaret. 1981 32 

City fun Hillert, Margaret. 1981 14 

Cobble street cousins; in Aunt Lucy's Kitchen Rylant, Cynthia. 20 

Comets and meteors : visitors from space Bendick, Jeanne. 1991 0 

Community helpers from A to Z Kalman, Bobbie, 1947- 1998 0 

The complete book of the night Tagholm, Sally. 2001 0 

The cookie house Hillert, Margaret. 2007 45 

Cosmic light shows Kalman, Bobbie. 1999 1 

Costume Rowland-Warne, L. 1992 0 

Crazy Hair Day Saltzberg, Barney. 2003 5 

Crazy Hair Day Saltzberg, Barney. 2003 2 

A cub explores Love, Pamela. 2003 8 

David and Goliath De Regniers, Beatrice Schenk. 1996 5 

A day at seagull beach Wallace, Karen. 1999 30 

Day I had to play with my sister, The Bonsall, Crosby Newell, 1921-19, 1999 28 

The day the women got the vote a photo history ol Sullivan, George, 1927- 1994 0 

Dear Mrs. La Rue; letters from obedience school Teague, Mark. 2002 14 

December secrets Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1984 5 

Deep space : beyond the solar system to the edge I Schilling, Govert, 2014 19 

Detective Mole and the Halloween Mystery Quackenbush, Robert. 1981 3 

Dinosaur babies Penner, Lucille Recht. 1991 15 

Dinosaur days Milton, Joyce. 1985 16 

Dinosaur ghosts the mystery of Coelophysis Gillette, J. Lynett. 1997 2 

Dinosaur time Parish, Peggy. 1983 17 

Dinosaurs Jeunesse, Gallimard. 1993 7 

-47-



The dinosaur's new clothes Goode, Diane,. 1999 0 

Duck at the Door Urbanovic, Jackie. 2007 20 

Duck Soup Urbanovic, Jackie. 2008 14 

Duck Soup Urbanovic, Jackie. 2008 22 

Dumpling soup Rattigan, Jama Kim. 15 

Duncan & Dolores Samuels, Barbara. 1989 13 

Eleanor: Crown Jewel of Aquitaine Gregory, Kristiana. 2002 1 

The emperor's birthday suit Wheeler, Cindy. 1996 26 

The enormous egg Butterworth, Oliver. 1984 1 

The enormous egg Butterworth, Oliver. 1984 4 

Exploring parks with Ranger Dockett Flanagan, Alice. 1997 1 

Fanny's dream Buehner, Caralyn. 1996 8 

Fire! Masoff, Joy, 1951- 1998 2 

First big book of space Hughes, Catherine D. 2012 6 

First big book of space Hughes, Catherine D. 2012 7 

First Tomato; A Voyage to the Bunny planet Wells, Rosemary. 1972 2 

First Tomato; A Voyage to the Bunny planet Wells, Rosemary. 1972 4 

Fish face Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1984 4 

Fluffy goes to school McMullan, Kate. 1997 7 

Fluffy saves Christmas McMullan, Kate. 1998 23 

Follow Mel Tafuri, Nancy. 10 

Force & motion Lafferty, Peter. 1992 0 

Four good friends Hillert, Margaret. 2007 34 

Four good friends Hillert, Margaret. 2007 63 

Frankenstein Burgan, Michael. 1996 0 

A friend for dear dragon Hillert, Margaret. 2006 35 

The Frog Prince Tarcov, Edith H. 1993 10 

The Frog Prince Tarcov, Edith H. 1993 11 

Fun days Hillert, Margaret. 2008 49 

Fun days Hillert, Margaret. 2008 26 

The funny baby Hillert, Margaret. 1963 46 

The funny baby Hillert, Margaret. 2007 61 

The further adventures of Hank the Cowdog Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 18 

Gangs and Wanting to Belong Williams, Stanley. 1996 0 

Garbage juice for breakfast Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1989 5 

The garbage monster from outer space Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 4 

The golden fleece and the heroes who lived before Colum, Padraic. 1983 5 

The golden goose Hillert, Margaret. 1978 26 

Goodnight, Little Hare Cain, Sheridan. 1999 8 

Grace Casanova, Mary, 2015 20 

Grace makes it great Casanova, Mary, 2015 24 

Great heroes of mythology Press, Petra. 1997 0 

Gus and Grandpa ride the train Mills, Claudia. 2000 6 

Halloween Gibbons, Gail. 1984 0 

Hammer down Calhoun, T. 8. 1999 0 

Hank the Cowdog and monkey business/ #14 Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 10 

Hank the Cowdog case of the black-hooded hangm Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 5 

-48-





I need you, dear dragon Hillert, Margaret. 2007 47 

I speak English for my mom Stanek, Muriel. 1989 2 

I spy letters Marzollo, Jean. 2012 37 

I was a second grade Werewolf Pinkwater, Daniel. 0 

I wonder why stars twinkle and other questions ab, Stott, Carole. 1997 2 

IF you decide to go to the moon Mcnulty, Faith. 2005 1 

If your name was changed at Ellis Island Levine, Ellen. 1993 0 

Immigrant kids Freedman, Russell. 1995 1 

In the beginning creation stories from around the v Hamilton, Virginia. 1988 1 

The incredible journey through the human body Harris, Nicholas, 1956- 2002 2 

Inside dinosaurs and other prehistoric creatures Parker, Steve, 1952- 1994 0 

The iron dragon never sleeps Krensky, Stephen. 1995 0 

The iron dragon never sleeps Krensky, Stephen. 1995 1 

Island of the Aunts Ibbotson, Eva. 1999 4 

It's circus time, dear dragon Hillert, Margaret. 2007 69 

It's St. Patrick's Day, dear dragon Hillert, Margaret. 2008 47 

ltse selu Cherokee harvest festival Pennington, Daniel, 1961- 1994 0 

ltsy bitsy Spider,The Trapani, lza. 1993 17 

Jake and the copycats Rocklin, Joanne. 1998 31 

El Jardin Secreto /spanish Burnett, Frances Hodgson. 1 

Jason and the golden fleece Naden, Corinne J. 1981 0 

Jelly beans for sale McMillan, Bruce. 1996 10 

Jimmy's boa bounces back Noble, Trinka Hakes. 1987 1 

Julie of the wolves George, Jean Craighead. 1974 0 

Jumanji Van Allsburg, Chris. 1981 9 

Just Us Women Caines, Jeannette. 3 

Justin Morgan had a horse Henry, Marguerite, 1902-1998. 1982 5 

Justin Morgan had a horse Henry, Marguerite, 1902-1998. 1982 5 

Katie John Calhoun, Mary. 1960 0 

Kids Discover: Amazon/ May 2014 Kids Discover. 2014 0 

Kids Discover: American Revolution/ September 1! 1998 0 

Kids Discover: Ancient Greece/ August/September 1994 o·

Kids Discover: Ancient Greece /July 2012 Kids Discover. 2012 0 

Kids Discover: Ancient India / April 2014 Kids Discover . 2014 0 

Kids Discover: Ancient India/ May 2003 2003 0 

Kids Discover: Antarctia / June 2001 2001 0 

Kids Discover: Antarctica /December 2012 Kids Discover. 2012 0 

Kids Discover: Aztecs/ March 2002 Kids Discover. 2002 0 

Kids Discover: Bees Kids Discover. 2005 0 

Kids Discover: Ben Franklin /May 2012 Kids Discover. 2012 1 

Kids Discover: Bicycles/ July 2004 Kids Discover. 2004 0 

Kids Discover: Boats Kids Discover 0 

Kids Discover: Brain Kids Discover. 2007 0 

Kids Discover: Cells/ January 2013 Kids Discover. 2013 0 

Kids Discover: Civil Right /February 2014 Kids Discover. 2014 2 

Kids Discover: Conservation/ April 2008 Kids Discover. 2008 0 

Kids Discover: DNA /Oct.1999 1999 1 

-50-





Kids Discover: Revolutionary Women/ March 2014 Kids Discover . 2014 0 

Kids Discover: Rocks/ April 2002 Kids Discover. 2002 0 

Kids Discover: Roman Empire/ November 2009 Kids Discover. 2009 0 

Kids Discover: Shelter/ March 1998 Kids Discover. 1998 0 

Kids Discover: Simple Machines/ March 2013 Kids Discover. 2013 0 

Kids Discover: Skin/ October 2004 Kids Discover. 2004 0 

Kids Discover: Solar System/ Special 3-Topic /1999 1999 0 

Kids Discover: Space Exploration/ November 2003 2003 0 

Kids Discover: Spiders/ February 2003 Kids Discover. 2003 0 

Kids Discover: Stars & Nebulae/ March 2008 Kids Discover. 2008 1 

Kids Discover: Sun/ April 2013 Kids Discover. 2013 0 

Kids Discover: Sun/ October 2002 Kids Discover. 2002 0 

Kids Discover: Telescopes/ May 2004 2004 1 

Kids Discover: Tornadoes/ July 2008 Kids Discover. 2008 1 

Kids Discover: Venice/ May 2000 2000 0 

Kids Discover: Washington, D.C./ November 2012 Kids Discover. 2012 0 

Kids Discover: Washington/ February 2011 2011 0 

Kids Discover: Washington/ Sept. 2000 2000 2 

Kids Discover: Where have all the Flowers Gone? Kids Discover. 2012 0 

Kids Discover: World War II Kids Discover. 2014 2 

Kids for Discover: Ancient China / October 2013 Kids Discover. 2013 1 

King Bobble Busser, Marianne. 1996 0 

King of the wind Henry, Marguerite. 1991 5 

King of the wind Henry, Marguerite. 1991 3 

The King's shadow Alder, Elizabeth. 1997 1 

Ladybug Girl Soman, David and Jacky Davis. 2008 18 

Let's go, dear dragon Hillert, Margaret. 2006 36 

Let's have a play Hillert, Margaret. 2008 18 

Let's have a play Hillert, Margaret. 2008 37 

Light Burnie, David. 1992 2 

Lion dancer Ernie Wan's Chinese New Year Waters, Kate. 1990 3 

A lion named Shirley Williamson Waber, Bernard. 1996 11 

The Little cookie Hillert, Margaret. 1981 49 

The Little cookie Hillert, Margaret. 2006 52 

Little Fish, Lost Van Laan, Nancy. 7 

Little Puff Hillert, Margaret. 2009 35 

Little Puff Hillert, Margaret. 2009 35 

The Little runaway Hillert, Margaret. 1966 63 

The Little runaway Hillert, Margaret. 1966 69 

A little Shopping Rylant, Cynthia. 1998 12 

Little White Dog Godwin, Laura. 1998 48 

The Long way Westward Sandin, Joan,. 1 

Look out, Washington, D.C. Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1995 4 

Louis the fish Yorinks, Arthur. 1986 0 

Louis the fish Yorinks, Arthur. 1986 4 

M and M and the Bad News Babies Ross, Pat ; pictures by Marylin H 1983 9 

M and M and the Bad News Babies Ross, Pat; pictures by Marylin H 1983 21 

-52-





Not I, not I Hillert, Margaret. 1981 23 

Not-so-perfect Rosie Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1998 10 

Nutcracker Noel McMullan, Kate. 1993 12 

Ocean life : tide pool creatures Leonhardt, Alice. 2000 0 

Oh! Henkes, Kevin. 1999 49 

The Old woman who loved to read Winch, John, 1944- 1997 30 

Oliver and Amanda's Halloween Van Leeuwen, Jean. 1992 19 

Olver Pig at School Van Leeuwen, Jean ;' illustrated 1990 2 

On the road with Poppa Whopper Busser, Marianne. 1997 1 

Once a wolf how wildlife biologists fought to bring Swinburne, Stephen R. 1999 2 

One day in the tropical rain forest George, Jean Craighead. 1995 4 

One duck stuck Root, Phyllis. 1998 50 

One hundred is a family Ryan, Pam Munoz. 1996 0 

The original adventures of Hank the Cowdog Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 15 

The original adventures of Hank the Cowdog Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 41 

Our sixth-grade sugar babies Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1990 1 

The Pacific Northwest coast Garrett, Sandra G., 1950- 1994 0 

Pegasus the winged horse Naden, Corinne J. 1981 0 

People Spier, Peter. 1980 0 

Perseus and Medusa Naden, Corinne J. 1981 0 

The phantom in the mirror Erickson, John R., 1943- 1999 4 

Philip Hall likes me, I reckon maybe Greene, Bette. 1999 0 

Pictures of Hollis Woods Giff, Patricia Reilly. 2002 5 

A pioneer thanksgiving : a story of harvest celebrat Greenwood, Barbara. 1999 0 

PLANET EARTH /Blow-up! Junior Science McRae Books. 2001 3 

Planets Carney, Elizabeth, 1981- 2012 32 

Planets Carney, Elizabeth, 1981- 2012 33 

Primrose day Haywood, Carolyn, 1898- 2005 6 

Puff-- flash-- bang! : a book about signals Gibbons, Gail. 1993 2 

Puff-- flash-- bang! : a book about signals Gibbons, Gail. 1993 0 

Puppies and piggies Rylant, Cynthia ; illustrated by Iv 2008 39 

Puppies and piggies Rylant, Cynthia ; illustrated by Iv 2008 33 

Purple climbing days Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1985 4 

Pussin in boots Perrault, Charles. 1990 0 

Quinceafiera : a Latina's journey to womanhood Lankford, Mary D. 1994 0 

Race ready Calhoun, T. B. 1998 1 

Rainy day fun Palazzo-Craig, Janet. 1988 22 

Rapunzel Zelinsky, Paul 0. 2 

Religion Langley, Myrtle. 2000 0 

Rock collecting Gans, Roma, 1894- 1997 3 

Rolling thunder Calhoun, T. B. 1998 4 

Romeo and Juliet Aronson, Billy. 1996 11 

Rosie's babies Waddell, Martin. 1999 3 

Rosy's romance Greenwald, Sheila. 1989 0 

Rosy's Romance Greenwald, Sheila. 16 

Rufus and magic run amok Levinson, Marilyn. 2001 0 

Samantha learns a lesson a school story Adler, Susan S., 1946- 1986 2 

-54-





Trees and forests : from algae to sequoias : the hist 1995 3 

Triceratops Dalla Vecchia, Fabio Marco. 2004 2 

Turkeys together Wallace, Carol, 1948- 2005 12 

The Ultimate guide to the sky. Mosley, John. 1997 0 

The Underwater alphabet book Pallotta, Jerry. 1991 6 

The Valentine star Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1985 9 

The Valentine star Giff, Patricia Reilly. 1985 11 

The Visual dictionary of the human body. 1991 0 

Way to go! Salzmann, Mary Elizabeth. 2004 2 

The Wednesday surprise Bunting, Eve, 1928- 1989 0 

Wet and dry Doudna, Kelly, 1963- 2000 10 

What is it? Hillert, Margaret. 2009 26 

What is the full moon full of? Oppenheim, Shulamith Levey. 1997 0 

What Mary Jo shared Udry, Janice May. 1991 1 

When will it be spring? Walters, Catherine, 1965- 1998 16 

While angels watch McGee, Marni. 2006 2 

Whistling Dixie Vaughan, Marcia. 1995 10 

The White Cat San Souci, Robert D. 2 

Who goes to school? Hillert, Margaret. 1981 33 

Who goes to school? Hillert, Margaret. 1981 44 

Whoppers tall tales and other lies Schwartz, Alvin. 1990 1 

Wild and woolly mammoths Aliki. 1996 4 

Wild child Plourde, Lynn. 1999 9 

Wild child Plourde, Lynn. 1999 1 

Winter Carnivals: festivals in white Gabbert, Lisa. 1999 1 

Winter Carnivals: festivals in white Gabbert, Lisa. 1999 0 

The Witch who went for a walk Hillert, Margaret. 2009 46 

The Witch who went for a walk Hillert, Margaret. 2009 30 

Witches, pumpkins, and grinning ghosts : the story Barth, Edna. 1972 0 

Witches, pumpkins, and grinning ghosts : the story Barth, Edna. 1972 0 

The wonders of me from A to Z Kalman, Bobbie, 1947- 1998 1 

World religions Jacobs, William Jay. 1996 0 

The yellow boat Hillert, Margaret. 2009 37 

The yellow boat Hillert, Margaret. 2009 37 

The yellow boat Hillert, Margaret. 2009 33 

Yippee-Vay! Gibbons, Gail. 4 

The Z was Zapped Van Allsburg, Chris. 1987 1 

3-D Origami Fun Folds Animals 19 

Abiyoyo Seeger, Pete. 1994 14 

The Adventures of Snail at school Stadler, John. 1995 11 

Ahoy there, Little Polar Bear de Beer, Hans. 7 

Ahoy there, Little Polar Bear de Beer, Hans. 10 

All God's Critters Staines, Bill. 2009 10 

All tutus should be pink Brownrigg, Sheri. 1992 20 

The Always prayer shawl Oberman, Sheldon. 1997 1 

The Amazing Bone Steig, William. 1976 1 

Andy's wild animal adventure Scheid!, Gerda Marie. 1997 8 

-56-





Commander Toad and the space pirates Yolen, Jane. 1987 7 

Commander Toad in space Yolen, Jane. 1996 6 

Could be Worse Stevenson, James. 0 

Could be Worse Stevenson, James. 0 

Crictor Ungerer, Tomi. 11 

The Crow who stood on his beak Schami, Rafik, 1946- 1996 1 

Dance at Grandpa's Wilder, Laura Ingalls. 6 

Dance Away Shannon, George. 9 

A dance like starlight : one ballerina's dream Dempsey, Kristy, 2014 2 

Dear Bunny A Bunny Love story Morgan, Michaels; Illustrated b· 2006 8 

Dear Little Fish Dahan, Andre. 2000 8 

The desert is theirs Baylor, Byrd. 1975 2 

Digging up dinosaurs Aliki. 1988 0 

Digging up dinosaurs Aliki. 1988 5 

Digging up dinosaurs Aliki. 1988 2 

Digging up Tyrannosaurus rex Horner, John R. 1995 2 

Dinner with Olivea Sollinger, Emily. 2009 7 

Dinner with Olivea Sollinger, Emily. 2009 13 

Dino safari : a LEGO adventure in the real world Arion, Penelope, 2016 40 

Dinofours, it's class trip day Metzger, Steve. 1997 2 

Dinosaur Norman, David, 1952- 1989 0 

Dinosaur bones Aliki. 1990 1 

Dinosaur Hunt Catrow, David. 2009 72 

Dinosaur hunters McMullan, Kate. 1989 1 

Dinosaur time Parish, Peggy. 1983 16 

DINOSAURS AND OTHER PREHISTORIC REPTILES Denny Robson. 2001 7 

Dinosaurs are different Aliki. 1986 5 

Dinosaurs to dodos an encyclopedia of extinct anin Lessem, Don. 1999 5 

Disney's 101 Dalmatians : a read-aloud storybook Baker, Liza. 1999 28 

Disney's The lion king. 1994 37 

Do Croes Kiss? Yoon, Salina. 2012 23 

Doesn't Fall Off His Horse Stroud, Virginia A. 1994 0 

Doesn't Fall Off His Horse Stroud, Virginia A. 1994 0 

A Dog Needs a Bone! Wood, Audrey. 2007 11 

Don't fidget a feather! Silverman, Erica. 1994 6 

Dora's Eggs Skyes, Julie. 1997 5 

Dreamland Schotter, Roni. 1996 0 

Duck Soup Urbanovic, Jackie. 2008 14 

The Dumb Bunnies go to the zoo Denim, Sue, 1966- 1997 35 

The Dumb Bunnies go to the zoo Denim, Sue, 1966- 1997 54 

Edward and the pirates Mcphail, David M. 1997 3 

Edward and the pirates Mcphail, David M. 1997 1 

The Egyptian Cinderella Climo, Shirley. 1989 1 

Elizabeti's doll Stuve-Bodeen, Stephanie, 1965- 1998 10 

The Emperor and the Kite Yolen, Jane. 1988 0 

The enormous potato Davis, Aubrey. . 1997 56 

Evolution Gamlin, Linda. 1993 6 

-58-





























MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

May 7, 2024 

AGENDA SECTION: PERSONNEL 

AGENDA ITEM: 11.2 DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES 

ATTACHMENTS: DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES JOB DESCRIPTION 

DISCUSSION: 

The Superintendent is recommending the approval of the revised Job Description for Director of 

Food Services. This new job description has minor changes with the job position being at 11 

months. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approve the Job Description as Presented. 

APPROVE 

-72-







MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Position Job Description 

• Sanitation and safety procedures of the district and state and local laws;

• Principles of nutrition planning;

• Standards weights and measures used in food preparation;

• Principles of cost control and record keeping;

• USDA and state reimbursement program requirements;
• Quality control standards associated with food service, preparation, and storage;
• Strategies to manage a small, localized staff;

• Communicate nutrition strategies to students, staff, families, and community;

• Methods and strategies in evaluation of staff.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 

• While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to

walk and continuously required to stand.
• The employee will frequently bend or twist at the neck and trunk.
• The employee is occasionally required to reach with hand and arms and repeat

the same hand, arm and finger motion many times, as in operating a cash

register or cutting food items, etc.
• The employee continuously uses hand strength to grasp tools.
• The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 50 pounds such as milk

crates, frozen foods, canned food, push fully loaded food carts, etc.
• Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, and depth

perception and peripheral vision.

ABILITY TO: 

• Organize, monitor, and evaluate food preparation staff on the service line
• Understand, explain, monitor, and provide updates to the district on changes to

food service policies and procedures;

• Understand the requisition process for food ordering and procurement;

• Extend, reduce, or adjust recipes to prepare proper quantities;
• Extend, reduce, or adjust recipes to prepare to meet changes to guidelines and

requirements;

• Manage scratch-made food requirements set by the District and funding sources;
• Communicate clearly and precisely, both orally and in writing;

• Prepare and serve high quality food utilizing standardized recipes within budget

limitations;

-75-





MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

May 7, 2024 

PERSONNEL 

11.3 DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES 

SALARY SCHEDULE 

PROPOSED SALARY SCHEDULE 

The Superintendent is recommending approval of the proposed salary schedule for the Director 

of Food Services position. Salary placement will be determined by education and experience 

along with qualifications of the candidate. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approve the new salary schedule for Director of Food 

Services as presented. 

APPROVE 

-77-



I 

-.J 

CD 
I 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary 

2023-24 Confidential Management Salary Schedule 

Step 1 2 3 

Business Manager $7,943 $8,106 $8,272 

260 days 

8 hours per day 

Food Service Director $4,560 $4,674 $4,891 

221 days* 

8 hours per day 

$28.48 $29.19 $29.91 

Food Service Director $4,937 $5,060 $5,186 

11 month 
8 hours per day 

MOT Director $5,395 $5,530 $5,671 

260 days 

8 hours per day 

Director of Technology $7,479 $7,665 $7,856 

.60 days 

. hours per day 

0% Percentage Increase 

Longevity Pay: 

$25 per month upon the completion of the 10th year of service 

$50 per month upon the completion of the 15th year of service 

$100 per month upon the completion of the 30th year of service 

* Includes Vacation and Holiday Day Pay 

4 5 6 

$8,440 $8,612 $8,787 $8,969 

$5,014 $5,137 $5,267 $5,395 

$30.66 $31.43 $32.22 $33.01 

$5,316 $5,448 $5,585 $5,724 

$5,808 $5,954 $6,102 $6,257 

$8,053 $8,254 $8,461 $8,673 

7 8 

$9,152 

$5,534 

$33.85 

$5,867 

$6,412 

$8,889 

**The District will process salary payments in accordance with the Tulare Cou11ty Office of Educatio11 's U11iform Salary Payment Schedule** 

Board Approved: May xx, 2024 

9 10 

$9,333 $9,520 

$5,673 $6,287 

$34.70 $35.56 

$6,014 $6,164 

$6,574 $7,158 

$9,112 $9,338 




